Responses to Questions for RFP AHRQ-06-00001 (ACTION )
All questions submitted may not be responded to specifically, many were duplicates or variations on the same theme, so the intent of the questions are set forth below with responses.  
Questions on Composition of Partnerships
1) Would you please define an "offeror"?  Is the entire partnership considered to be an "offeror" or is only one of the partners an offeror and others are subcontractors/collaborators?

From AHRQ’s perspective, “offeror” refers primarily to the partnership as a whole. The participants in the partnership consist of the “prime” or lead, who will be the organization with which AHRQ will contract, and its subcontractors/collaborators.

2) Can the same partner organization participate on two separate applications from two different offerors to ACTION?

Yes, an organization can collaborate with more than one “prime” (i.e., the lead organization) in a partnership. 

3) Would this call fund a partnership based outside the United States?

The ACTION RFP includes several statements that indicate that the focus of the program is on US healthcare delivery and healthcare outcomes. For example, the Background section mentions that AHRQ's mission is to improve the quality, safety, efficiency and effectiveness of health care for all Americans. The section on Features Common to ACTION and the IDSRN states that AHRQ is interested in priority populations served by participants in ACTION, such as those covered by Medicare and Medicaid, which are distinctly US populations. The Objectives section states that the overarching goal of the program is to improve healthcare delivery systems and healthcare outcomes in the US.

In order to meet the programs objectives and to assist in meeting AHRQ's mission, this program is expected to attract and consider offers from US-based healthcare delivery systems that serve US populations and have access to US healthcare system data. 

Questions on Program Process
4) It is our understanding that ACTION contract awardees will not be awarded projects immediately, but rather those partnerships will become a "pool" from which AHRQ will solicit proposals for contract task orders developed at future dates. Is this understanding essentially correct? 

Yes, this is a correct interpretation of the RFP.

5)  Are we to include ideas for task orders we anticipate, or are we simply applying for a contract to become an ACTION network grantee?  
Ideas for task orders are not requested and should not be included in your proposal. The ACTION program is not a grant program.  Project work will be accomplished as separate task orders under master contracts with awardees of this RFP. Awardees will be contractors, not grantees.

6) Will the ACTION partnerships participate in the development of future potential tasks and requests for task order?

Yes, submission of 1-2 page concepts for requests for task orders will be encouraged from all sources:  the ACTION partners, AHRQ staff, co-funding organizations, HHS, and others.  The requests for task orders themselves are generally developed by AHRQ staff.  Staff from co-funding organizations will also be involved in this process if co-funding is obtained. 

Questions on Past Performance

7) If past performance of the organizations involved is in terms of research grants (e.g. NIH RO1 type and foundations), rather than contracts, how will this record be evaluated? Are these organizations at disadvantage because of this?

Past performance submissions on relevant contracts is preferred because it shows the offeror’s performance on quality, cost control, timeliness and business relations.  If an offeror does not have this type of relevant past performance on contracts, past performance evaluations on relevant grants will be considered. .

8) Is past performance information required from individual organizations within the partnership?

Past performance of the partnership as an entity is highly desirable. However, if the partnership is new, past performance of individual collaborating organizations should be included. Please note if an organization has a proposed subcontractor submitting a Past Performance evaluation form on this procurement, please identify the name of the Prime Contractor you are teaming with, so they can be evaluated together
9) If only one of the partners is the prime, but other participants in the partnership have held federal contracts, and their performance on those contracts is relevant to the partnership's ability to demonstrate past performance quality, may we include those in the past performance questionnaires?

Yes

10) The RFP states that the past performance evaluation forms shall be completed and forwarded directly to AHRQ by the contracting organizations listed in our Past Performance submission, and that it is our responsibility to ensure that the form is completed and returned to AHRQ.  Can we ask the contracting organizations to cc us on their responses to you so that we can have a notice that you have received the evaluations, or are we prohibited from seeing the evaluations?  

The past performance evaluations are supposed to be completed on an impartial basis, so offerors are not supposed to see the evaluations being submitted. 
11) For the Past Performance section L.11 on page 61, offerors must provide the Past Performance Questionnaire and Contractor Performance Form (Attachment 1) to the contracting organizations listed in section 1.  The contracting organizations should submit their completed forms to Mary Haines by September 21.  What if not all of the contracting organizations complete and submit these forms by the deadline?  How does this affect the scoring and ranking of the bidder’s application?
Only those past performance evaluations received by the date specified in the solicitation will be considered.  
12) Section L.11 Past Performance Information on page 60 indicates that the offeror shall submit past performance information for both the offeror and major subcontractors for relevant contracts and subcontracts.  How should relevant projects that have been funded internally by a health care provider as part of its operations or research and development be handled?  Should such projects be included in the organizational and corporate experience section of the technical proposal but not in the past performance section, since there are no external funders/clients to complete the past performance questionnaire and contractor performance form?

Yes, past performance evaluations should only be requested for external customers.
13) In the Past Performance section, are you asking for 5 projects? Do you mean 5 projects each for the prime contractor and the major subcontractors, or 5 projects total selected from the prime and major subcontractors? 
Five relevant projects total should suffice unless the partnership is very large, in which case a few more examples could be added. 

Questions on Labor Categories and Rates
14) Section B.2, Task Orders on page 5 states that “Each task order awarded under this contract shall include one or more of the labor categories in Section B.3 and the Contractor shall be reimbursed for costs incurred for labor based on the following hourly rates,” but no rates were listed on pages 5 and 6.  Could AHRQ clarify whether the offeror is to provide these Proposed Labor Rates for each of the Years listed on pages 5-6?
Yes, the offeror is supposed to propose the “Proposed Labor Category Hourly Rate Ranges,” for each of the Years listed on pages 5-6 for each of the six labor categories.  According to Section L.14 Selection of Offerors of the RFP, the cost analysis will consist of establishing a Labor Category Hourly Rate Range for the six Labor Categories (I, II, III, IV, V and VI). 
15) If partners or collaborators do not have an indirect rate approved for federal awards, do they need to obtain an indirect rate?

Yes. Refer to G.5 Indirect Cost Rates and Fee.  If an indirect rate is not established by the time of contract award, the Contractor will be provided up to 90 days to establish the indirect cost rate.  
16) On page 2 (no.3) of the RFP, it is stated that the application requires "certified documentation that the offeror has current indirect cost rate agreement in place with a federal agency".  Do we need this documentation only for the prime organization or for the other participants in the partnership as well?
It is required for the prime organization and for the other participants in the partnership as well. 

17)  With regard to the presentation of labor rates by class level and year, would it be sufficient to provide a range, established on the basis of a sample of rates, within which we intend to stay?  Also, is there a specific inflation factor that should be used to show these labor rates in the out years or is the commonly used 3-4% acceptable?

A representative sample of positions that could be averaged to propose each Labor Category Hourly Rate Range per class is requested. The negotiations for the proposed Labor Category Hourly Rate Range will include the evaluation of the reasonableness of the individual cost components (unburdened rate, indirect rates and fee/ profit, if applicable.) 

Escalation, Yes, based on discussions with other Government audit agencies, the recommended labor escalation rate for future Government Fiscal Years are: FY 2006 – 3.28%; FY 2007 – 3.55%; FY 2008 and beyond – 3.6%. 

18) Is it required that the contractor have and propose the rate structure requested in the RFP to be responsive to this RFP? If a contractor has a composite labor rate by department versus labor category, are the rates capped at what is listed in the proposal?

The Contactor should propose the rate structure requested in the RFP.  See response to No.  17.
Questions on Participant Characteristics and Key Personnel
19) From the table in Appendix A it appears that partner organizations should be providers/insurers.  On page 53 the list of partnerships is much broader.  Please clarify.  Should Appendix A be completed for each partner organization or should it be a summary of all partner organizations including the offeror?

The table in Appendix A serves the purpose of very roughly summarizing for reviewers some characteristics of the participating organizations, particularly those serving patients, residents or health plan enrollees. Offerors are encouraged to present these characteristics either for the partnership as a whole or for individual participants in the partnership. AHRQ’s preference would be to report by organization, if feasible. Offerors are also encouraged to present, in similar table format, any desired complementary information (e.g., number of employers in a coalition and the employer characteristics.)   

20) On pages 57-60 regarding offerors’ data, is this information also required of the partner organizations? If so, to the same level of detail?

To the extent possible, these data should be presented, as succinctly as possible, for the collaborating organizations in addition to the “prime”, or lead, for the partnership. 

21) Can the key personnel include people from each of the partner organizations?  On page 70 says “major subcontractors” can be key personnel.  I would assume that each partner organization should have a key person tied to it?
Yes, each subcontractor should have a designated main contact. 

22) Appendix A (page 2) seeks information about the characteristics of the participating health delivery systems and their enrollees. i) We note that with respect to the recipients of care, it is expected the numbers be in millions. Our programs are by design small and taken all together account for thousands rather than millions. ii) Furthermore, the chart to document the delivery system settings and providers does not fit our model. Our program provides the entire continuum of services listed in the chart, but they "make" rather than "own" or "contract" with specific types of care providers. For example, all programs provide home health care and rehab services. But they may not operate a licensed home health care agency or a rehab clinic or contract with such.

Therefore: 

i)  Are we at a disadvantage in this application if all of our health plans do not serve such large numbers of health care recipients? ii)  Are you interested in the total number of persons who are currently being served or in the overall number of recipients who have ever been served by these programs? iii)  May we feel free to redesign this table in such a way that we document the types of services provided by our programs in the way which best reflects program reality? 
Response:

i) The offeror is not at a disadvantage if the numbers of patients served is smaller than average for this type of Network. 

ii) We are interested in the current number of persons served, not total ever served. 

iii) Feel free to add information in a separate table that may better reflect the components of the partnership in question. 

Question on Sections 2.0 and 3.0
23) Page 55 of the RFP SOW refers to section 2.0 and 3.0 in two places as containing "tasks and subtasks" and "activities."  Pages 12 and 14 of Section C of the SOW do discuss tasks and activities generally but there is no designated section 2.0 or 3.0, and there are specifically no subtasks in the RFP SOW.   Section 2.0 and 3.0 are referred to in several other places but these sections, with detailed tasks and subtasks, are missing. Please clarify. 

The Scope of Work was revised several times before the issuance of the RFP.  It appears that the narrative from the technical proposal instructions (pg. 55) and the technical evaluation criteria (pg. 70) were not completely updated to match the narrative of the Scope of Work.  The RFP SOW does not have specific tasks or subtasks. There is no language missing from it.    

Read the reference to “tasks and subtasks in section 2.0 and 3.0” to mean the SOW.  

 

Question on Form 33 

 
24) Section L.2 indicates offerors shall enter "in the block… on the cover page of its offer…"  This implies that a Form 33 should be completed and submitted as a contract cover page, yet a Form 33 was not provided with the RFP.  Is a Form 33 to be submitted? 

 
A SF 33 is not required to be submitted with the offer, but it is certainly permissible. 
Please refer to L.3 Instructions to Offerors – Competitive Acquisition subparagraph(c) (1).  The Cover page of the Business Proposal must provide the name and address of the offeror, a point of contact with contact information (phone number and e-mail is most helpful), DUNs number, TIN.  Provide sufficient information for the Government to contact you if we would like to talk with you about your proposal. 
Questions on Small and Disadvantaged Businesses
25) Could AHRQ clarify the similarities and differences between a Small Business Subcontracting Plan and a Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan?   Could AHRQ clarify which of these two Plans should be addressed when an awardee responds to a task order?  
The requirement for the Small Business Subcontracting Plan and the Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan will only be required for task orders in excess of $500,000. 

The purpose of the Small Business Subcontracting Plan (FAR 19.704  )is to  provide information as to how an offeror plans to meet the DHHS/ AHRQ (departmental) goals for socioeconomic contracting for the instant procurement (particular task order in this case).   The Small Business Subcontract Plan will be negotiated on an as needed basis.   
The Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan (FAR 19.12) is a plan that provides information on how the organization as a whole has subcontracted with disadvantaged businesses in the past and how it plans to do so in the future.
26)  Section L.13.B (g.) states that the AHRQ recommended goal "(as a percentage of total contract value)" [emphasis added] is 23% for Small Businesses.  While we realize that no formal Subcontracting Plan or Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan is required with the initial proposal submission, and is only required at the Task Order RFP level, please clarify the percentage.  It is our understanding of the SBA requirements that a prime contractor's small business percentages are derived from the total planned subcontract amount on Task Order proposals, not a percentage of the total Task Order value. 

 
Yes, the small business percentages would be derived from the total planned subcontract amount on the Task Order proposal.  Note the Task Order proposal amount may change as a result of negotiation. 
27) In the L. 9, General Instructions on page 51, part c of the RFP, one of the three parts of the proposal is the Business Proposal, including the Small Business Subcontracting Plan.  However in Section L.13, Section B-Small Business Subcontracting Plan on page 63, the RFP states that a Small Business Subcontracting Plan will only be requested when a task order meets or exceeds the $500,000 threshold.  Could AHRQ clarify whether the offeror must provide a Small Business Subcontracting Plan for the current proposal and whether this is also applicable to the major subcontractors?  If this plan is required as part of the current proposal, how can the budget amount required in the Small Business Subcontracting plan form (attachment 4) be determined without knowing the level of effort for a specific task order?
There is no requirement for a Small Business Subcontracting Plan. A Small Business Subcontracting Plan will only be requested if the task order value is over $500,000.  

Note Section L.9 General Instructions on page 51 stating the Business Proposal includes the Small Business Subcontracting Plan is an error.  

28) In Section L.12, Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan on page 62, the RFP indicates that a Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan will be requested if a Task Order meets or exceeds the $500,000 threshold.  Could AHRQ clarify whether a Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan should be included in the current proposal response to this RFP and if so, is this applicable both to the prime and to major subcontractors (if any of them are not small businesses)?  Is there any added value for including Small Disadvantaged Business Participation plan in the current proposal application?   
The proposal is not required to have either a Small Business Subcontracting Plan or a Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan in order to be responsive to the RFP.  The submission of a Small Business Participation Plan with the proposal would add no value to the proposal. 
Question on Points for Evaluation Criteria

29)  On page 69, in Section M, the section identified as "Offerors Please Note" indicates that Evaluation Criteria 1 through 3 total 100 points, and Criterion 4 is valued at 20 points.  However, the actual values for Criteria 1 through 3 on pages 70 and 71 add up to 105 points.  Which of those three Evaluation Criteria are to be reduced by 5 points? 

 
The correct weight value for the first Evaluation Criteria, “Organizational/ Corporate Experience” is 20 points.   The sum of the four evaluation criteria is 100 points; AHRQ apologizes for this typographical error. 

Question on Review Committee
30) Will there be any non-academically affiliated health care provider organizations represented on the ACTION proposal review committee? 
AHRQ’s statute requires that all contract proposals are peer reviewed.   We do not comment on who the reviewers are and their names will not releasable through FOIA, to ensure an impartial evaluation. AHRQ appreciates your suggestion.
Question on Proposal Delivery to AHRQ 
31) Part I – The Schedule, Section A – Solicitation Form on page 2 indicates that Express Mail from the US Postal Service is not delivered to your Rockville, Maryland address.  Please indicate whether other “express mail” services (such as UPS or Federal Express) may be used to deliver the proposal to your Rockville, Maryland address and if there are security restrictions that would delay timely receipt of a proposal using these other mail services.  

Taking the above cautions into consideration, the offeror may use whichever express mail carriers they choose.  Further you are cautioned about the security restrictions that would delay timely receipt of a proposal.  It is the offeror’s responsibility to ensure the proposal arrives in a timely manner.  

Question on Section K
32) Part IV. Representations and Instruction, Section K on pages 36-42 includes a number of Representations, Certifications and Other Statements of the Offeror (i.e. K.1, K.2, K.3, K.4, K.5, and K6). Could AHRQ clarify whether the offeror is only required to complete Section K or is this section also applicable to major subcontractors?  

Major subcontractors are not required to complete the Representations and Certifications.  Please note the requirements of K.2 Annual Representations and Certifications.  Please note the requirements of K.2 Annual Representations and Certifications. 
Question on In-kind Contributions
33) Please clarify the types of in-kind contribution AHRQ expects from participating delivery systems.  To be more specific, we envision several possible roles that partnership participants might fill in ACTION.  They include:

a. Participation in activities, such as meetings and telephone conferences, to set the research agenda,

b. Internal ACTION team meetings to develop research concepts and proposals for research,

c. Creating analytic data sets for awarded task orders,

d. Designing and implementing demonstration and evaluation of delivery system innovations,

e. Serving as research subjects in the collection of qualitative and quantitative interview data to evaluate innovations,

f. Participating in the data analysis and reporting of results.

Please provide guidance about which kinds of activities you expect the partners to support with internal funds and which may be covered with AHRQ funds? 
Any of the above would be suitable. In addition, in-kind contributions could include equipment use, resources needed to collect data that would otherwise require OMB clearance, or other contributions. The partnership could seek and obtain additional funding from other sources to supplement their work if needed. Opportunities for in-kind contributions will likely depend heavily on the nature of future individual task orders. 

Question on Section H.1

34) We are very concerned about the provisions of Section H.1. that relate to USCode 299c-2(b)(1). Review of potential academic publications, as separate from publications made by the government itself, under an unrestricted standard of “quality” means that the government contract officer will have a de facto censorship power over academic publications.  

We believe H.1., as drafted, is not consistent with the statute it cites. We request that H.1. be modified and ask for clarification from the agency regarding the modifications it has under consideration. We of course have no problem with prior review and comment. By selecting research institutions of the highest caliber and reviewing their proposed academic publications in advance, we have no doubt that the agency will be taking “appropriate” steps, as required by the statute.  
AHRQ is in the process of considering appropriate modifications to Section H.1. We are pleased to hear that prior review and comment on deliverables by AHRQ staff are not considered to be a problem, as this is the crux of the issue. By law, AHRQ must fulfill the mandate of 923(b) (1) of the PHS Act, 42 U.S.C. 299c-2(b) (1). That is, as a steward of public funds, AHRQ must assure that the materials and products developed through its initiatives are of high quality, comprehensive and timely. Thus, prior to public dissemination by the contractor, AHRQ must review materials and products that are based on, or derived from, work performed under contract.

However, contrary to the assertion above that Section H.1 gives a government contract officer de facto censorship power over academic publications, if no written conditions or agreement are received from AHRQ within a defined time frame for the review, the contractor may publish, present, or otherwise disclose this material subject to the restrictions of Section 924(c).  When making such material public, the contractor must print prominently on written materials or state prior to any oral or other disclosure of material, the following disclaimer: "THIS PUBLICATION (or other appropriate description of deliverable) HAS NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE AGENCY FOR HEALTHCARE RESEARCH AND QUALITY” 
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